Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Monday, 17 March 2008

Present: Councillors Nora Ball, Mrs Doreen Dickinson, Anthony Gee, Keith Iddon, Margaret Iddon, Kevin Joyce, Adrian Lowe, Marion Lowe and Rosie Russell

08.ECS.08 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

In the absence of the Chair of the Committee it was necessary to appoint a Chair for this meeting of the Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

It was moved and seconded and subsequently **RESOLVED** that Councillor Adrian Lowe be appointed to Chair this meeting of the Panel.

The Panel Members wished it to be placed on record their disappointment at the change in the date of the Panel meeting and that the Chair Councillor Greg Morgan had been unable to attend the re-arranged meeting because of work commitments.

The Panel **AGREED** that consideration be given to the appointment of a Vice-Chair for future meetings of the Panel.

08.ECS.09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Greg Morgan (Chair) and Councillors Judith Boothman, Magda Cullens, Mike Devaney, Catherine Hoyle, Mick Muncaster and Shaun Smith.

08.ECS.10 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

No Members declared an interest in relation to matters under consideration at the meeting.

08.ECS.11 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

No Members of the public requested to speak at the meeting.

08.ECS.12 MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 24 January 2008 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

08.ECS.13 SCRUTINY INQUIRY - CHORLEY TOWN CENTRE AUDIT AND DESIGN STRATEGY

Further to Minute 08.ECS.05 (24 January 2008) the Panel Members received a presentation from a representative of Landscape Projects commissioned to undertake a town centre audit.

The audit involved information gathering, collation and analysis as well as consultation with stakeholders and the public.

The presentation outlined the results of the audit following the consultation and listening to the views of stakeholders including Councillors and their opinions.

A good response had been received following the Placecheck event that took place on 17 February 2008 in the Town Centre.

The consultation had centred around the undermentioned topics setting out the negative and positive comments that had been received.

- Buildings
- Streets
- Open Space
- Transport
- Market
- Shopping
- Town
- Parking
- Security

The Consultant was currently working with the Council's Officers to draw up key recommendations for the Design Strategy which would be reported to Members.

08.ECS.14 BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING STATEMENTS - 1 OCTOBER 2007 TO 31 DECEMBER 2007

The Panel received the third quarter Business Plan Monitoring Statements for the period 1 October 2007 to 31 December 2007 relating to the undermentioned Directorates whose services and functions all fall within the remit and area of responsibility of the Panel.

- Leisure and Culture
- Development and Regeneration
- Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment

The Corporate Director (People) informed the Panel that his Directorate had made good progress across all areas in the first nine months with no significant variations to report.

As had been reported at previous meetings it was noted that the performance target for the processing of invoices within 30 working days had now improved following changes made to the process.

The report indicated that progress had been made in a number of areas, with Members requested to be kept up to date on the progress on the management of capital projects.

Members would be kept up to date on 6 monthly intervals with the use of the new publication "In the Know" providing the information to Councillors.

The Corporate Director (Business) informed the Panel that the third quarter of the year had seen excellent progress on meeting the Directorate's targets set out in the Corporate Strategy and the Business Improvement Plan.

A number of projects had been completed including an actioned proposal for an enterprise/green technology centre on the Strategic Regional Site at Buckshaw, implementation of the investment strategy had commenced with the appointment of a Town Centre Manager as well as the Design Audit for the Town Centre.

Concern had been expressed at previous meetings at the continuing problem with housing allocations and the use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation. It had been agreed with Chorley Community Housing that the Housing Allocation Team be brought back into the Council.

The Panel received the Business Plan Monitoring Statement relating to the Neighbourhoods Directorate.

The report indicated that it was during this third quarter that the new Neighbourhoods Directorate was formed and consequently it was in a transition period whilst the placing of work activities were agreed between Directorates.

The report set out the service developments of the Directorate.

The Directorate had performed well during the third quarter, with the majority of indicators being on target or showing improvement. Those areas such as graffiti removal and sickness absence had shown poor performance. Action Plans had been completed to address these issues.

Members raised concern that the Pest Control Service performance was down, with the service not responding quick enough to reports of rodents. It was noted that this service was already being examined to address the concern.

08.ECS.15 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2007/08

The Panel received the current Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2007/08 Municipal Year and in particular the item relating to the Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

RESOLVED – That the Programme be noted.

Chair